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RE:  REPLY COMMENTS
ELECTRIC SERVICE QUALITY REPORT
DockET No. E002/M-15-324

Dear Mr. Wolf:

Northern States Power Company, doing business as Xcel Energy, submits this
Reply to the June 30, 2015 Comments of the Minnesota Department of
Commerce — Division of Energy Resources in the above-referenced docket.

We have electronically filed this document with the Minnesota Public Utilities
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INTRODUCTION

Northern States Power Company, doing business as Xcel Energy, submits to the
Minnesota Public Utilities Commission this Reply to the June 30, 2015 Comments of
the Minnesota Department of Commerce — Division of Energy Resources on our
Annual Safety, Reliability, and Service Quality Report for 2014; and Petition for
Approval of Reliability Goals for 2015.

We appreciate the Department’s recommendation that the Commission accept our
Report, pending submission of additional information, and our proposed 2015
reliability goals for three of four work centers. We provide our Reply to the
Department’s request for additional information below, and we respond to the
Department’s recommendation regarding our 2015 reliability goals for the Southeast
work center.

REPLY
A.  Major Service Interruption Notices
The Department requested that we discuss process improvements to alleviate the

number of major service interruption notices not sent to the Consumer Affairs Office
(CAO) as a result of human errors.



In response to the Department's analysis of our feeder outage reporting, we have
further examined the eleven outages we reported as meeting the definition of a
reportable outage under Minnesota Rule 7826.0200, subp. 7, but where we missed
sending a notice to the CAO. Of those eleven outages, nine were feeder switch
outages which were coded in our data system as an event at the feeder level or
above, though the feeder breaker was not actually triggered during those nine events.
Per our business processes, we do not consider feeder switch outages as being “at
the feeder level” because the feeder was not actually out; the feeder is still able to
provide service to some customers if the feeder switch experiences an outage.
Because they are not considered outages at the feeder level, we did not send an
emailed notice to the CAO for those outages. However, per internal business
processes we code feeder switch outages as “feeder level” in our data systems.
When we extracted the data for our annual report to list interruptions at the feeder
level or above affecting 500 or more customers for 60 or more minutes, we should
have manually removed these nine outages as not meeting the definition of a major
service interruption at the feeder level or above. The human error element was one
of annual reporting accuracy and not a failure to meet the Minnesota Rule reporting
requirement for major service interruptions. We will be sure to remove these types
of outages in future reports.

When the report is corrected to remove these nine events where the feeder
breaker was never opened, we only missed sending two required emails to the
CAO. Our percentage of unreported major service interruptions is then reduced
to approximately 1 percent.

We also note that the Department’s Table 3 includes the number of major service
interruptions for 2013 as reported in our Petition in Docket No. E002/M-14-131,
which was updated subsequently in our July 25, 2014 Reply Comments from 603 to
310. So while the number of outages decreased from 310 outages in 2013 to 233
outages in 2014 due to heavier storms in 2013 than in 2014, the decrease was not as
substantial as Table 3 indicates.

B.  Worst Performing Feeder in Metro East Work Center

The Department requested we discuss a recurring worst-performing feeder in the
Metro East work center that last appeared on the worst-performing feeder list in
2010 and 2011.

Opver the past few years, the feeder in question experienced outages primarily due
to vegetation management issues in addition to issues coded as “unknown,” which
means, generally, there is no solvable issue or identifiable action we can take to



improve performance. This feeder also experienced an outage in 2013 due to a
parallel feeder event, which is unpredictable. We note that many variables can cause
a feeder to be included on the worst-performing list which can make predicting future
poor performance challenging. In fact, this particular feeder was not selected to be
on the top five poor-performing list in 2012 and 2013, so it had not been targeted for
specific maintenance to prevent outages. The top five poor-performing list also
includes outages on storm days, and this feeder was not worst-performing in 2013
when we experienced an intense storm in the metro area. At this time, given that this
feeder was not selected to be in the top five poor-performing list in 2012 and 2013,
and that there is no one specific cause for outages over the past five years, we do not
expect this feeder to be on the 2015 worst performer list.

C. Southeast Work Center

In this section, we address several issues relating to reliability in the Southeast work
Center.

1. Staffing Level

The Department requested we discuss the “relatively low” 2014 staffing level in the
Southeast work center and whether it is sufficient to assure prompt service
restoration to customers experiencing outages.

As the Department notes, the staffing level for this work center has fluctuated over
the past 12 years of service quality reporting. The staffing level in 2013 was the
lowest, though it subsequently increased for the current reporting year. We do not
believe that the staffing level will materially impact our ability to provide prompt
service restoration. One reason we are comfortable with our staffing level is an
initiative resulting from our Customer Average Interruption Duration Index (CAIDI)
Reduction Plan to use contractors for some appointments. This practice supports
our efforts of reducing CAIDI metrics, especially in the Southeast work center that
has a large service territory to cover, by allowing our workforce to remain at a steady
level to meet non-outage customer expectations, while current specialized crews are
available to respond to outages in a more timely fashion.

In addition, we recorded relatively few customer complaints due to reliability issues in
2014 in the Southeast work center. Two customers lodged formal complaints, and 44
contacts to our call center were coded as relating to outages. Out of 118,191
customers in this work center, we believe this data supports that customers are not
feeling the impact of the current staffing level in the Southeast work center.



2. SAIDI, SAIFI and CAIDI Metrics

The Department concurs with the Company’s calculation of its proposed 2015
reliability goal levels, with the exception of the Southeast work center. For this work
center, the Department proposes to maintain the 2014 System Average Interruption
Duration Index (SAIDI), System Average Interruption Frequency Index (SAIFI), and
CAIDI goal levels in 2015. While the Company understands that the Southeast work
center has not been successful at attaining its approved metrics for the past several
years, we are concerned about the lack of consistency inherent in changing the metric
calculation methodology for only one work center.

We recommend that the Commission approve maintaining the five year historical
average calculation methodology for all work centers rather than separating out the
Southeast work center with a different calculation. To keep the 2014 metrics for the
Southeast work center in 2015 will only lessen the chances of meeting the metric next
year. As we discussed in our original report, the difference between meeting and not
meeting the metrics in a given year has often been the result of only one or two
events that push us over the metric. In the Southeast work center, missing a metric is
often due to the drive time for personnel to get to the outage for assessment and
repair in such a large geographic area. We believe we are providing adequate service
despite missing, sometimes only narrowly, the established metrics.

We acknowledge that our proposed 2015 reliability metrics and the Department’s
proposal to maintain the 2014 metrics for the Southeast work center in 2015 is not a
significant difference. We would accept either option the Commission believes is
best, though we do believe that a consistent calculation methodology across the work
centers is preferable. No matter which reliability metrics are approved by the
Commission for 2015, we intend to maintain safe, reliable service for our customers
across our entire service territory, and we remain committed to improving our

SAIDI, SAIFI, and CAIDI performance.
3. CAIDI Reduction Plan

As noted in our Reply Comments in Docket No. E002/M-14-131 and in our report
in the present docket, we began to implement a CAIDI reduction plan in early 2014.
We appreciate the Department’s understanding that this plan may take time to
produce results given that the plan is designed to cascade into the future. Many of
the specific improvements we can implement today may only maintain performance
at this time, rather than demonstrate concrete improvement reflected in the reliability



metric results. We continue to implement processes to improve time recording, time
management and training, to use contractors effectively, and to “restore before
repair,” which we believe will at a minimum help maintain CAIDI performance
results. In order to see more immediate, real-time CAIDI improvement, we need to
introduce new technology. By 2017, we should begin installing updated control
center technology, so-called “system intelligence,” that we expect will produce more
immediate CAIDI improvement results.

CONCLUSION

We appreciate the Department’s review of our Report and are hopeful the additional
information we provided in these Reply Comments meets the Department’s requests
for further clarification and information. We respectfully request that the
Commission approve our Annual Safety, Reliability, and Service Quality Report for
2014; and Petition for Approval of Reliability Goals for 2015 as originally proposed
and supplemented by these Reply Comments.

Dated: July 13, 2015

Northern States Power Company
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